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NOTICE

&

BRIGADE

Notice is hereby given that the Second Annual General Meeting of Brigade Hotel Ventures
Limited will be held at held at 11.00 a.m. on Friday, 10™ August, 2018 at the Board Room, 30™
Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr.Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-
Rajajinagar, Bangalore- 560055 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet and Audited Profit & Loss

Account for the financial year ended 31°" March, 2018 and the reports of the Board of
Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Nirupa Shankar (DIN: 02750342), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Ms. Nirupa
Shankar (DIN: 02750342), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for
re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to
retire by rotation.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) and based on the recommendations of the Board, the approval of
the Members be and is hereby accorded to ratify the appointment of M/s. SR. Batliboi &
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No.101049W/E300004) as
Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this Second Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the Third Annual General Meeting on such remuneration as
may be recommended by the Audit Committee and finalized by the Board of Directors in
consultation with the Statutory Auditors.”

Place: Bangalore
Date: 2" May, 2018

Registered Office

29™ & 30™ Floor, World Trade Center
Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1,

Dr. Rajkumar Road,

Bangalore-560055

By order of the Board
For Brigad¢ Hotel Ventures Limited

: 00191267
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NOTES:

,

BRIGADE

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND THE

PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

2. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office
of the Company not less than forty eight hours before this Annual General

Meeting.
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

We have pleasure in presenting the Second Annual Report on business and operations of the
Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended
31" March, 2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Total Income 16,546.89 8,333.10
Total Expenses 17,474 58 8,158.82
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and (527.69) 174 .28
tax
Exceptional Items (1,055.04) -
Profit/Loss before tax (1,582.73) 174 .28
Current Tax - -
Deferred tax(credit)/charge (404.63) 48.08
Profit/(Loss) After tax (1,178.10) 126.20
Other Comprehensive Income 11.36 11.32
Total Comprehensive Income/Loss (1,166.74) 137.52
Balance in Profit & Loss Account brought 137.52 -
forward from previous year
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 28,042 .41 137.52

FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW:

Your Company has earned total income of Rs.16,646.43 Lakhs for the financial year ended
31" March, 2018 as compared o Rs.8,178.77 Lakhs during the previous year ended 31°" March,
2017, an increase by 103.53%. The other comprehensive income/loss for the year ended
31°" March, 2018 was at (Rs.1,166.74) lakhs as compared to Rs 137.52 lakhs in the previous year.
The loss is due to depreciation. The business prospects for the hospitality sector is very bright
with the huge influx of tourists to India every year and your Company has a right mix of hotels
and operating efficiently which is expected to perform better than the industry average. Your
Company is bullish on the hospitality business with around 1000 operational keys which will be
get doubled in the next 2 to 3 years.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT:

During the Year under review, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Bengaluru
Bench has approved the Scheme of Arrangement of Brigade Enterprises Limited, Holding



BRIGADE HOTEL VENTURES LIMITED g )
Corporate Identity Number (CiN) : U74999KA2016PLC095986 —
Regd. Off.. 29" & 30" Floor, World Trade Center, —
Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road,

Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560 055 BRIGADE

Phone : +91 - 080 - 4137 9200 Fax : +91 - 080 - 2221 0784

Company with Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited, and their respective members and creditors
("Scheme of Arrangement”) on 13™ March, 2018. The NCLT order has been e-filed with the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs in Form INC 28 on 1°" April, 2018 which is the effective date for
the Scheme.

Pursuant to approval of the Scheme the hotel business undertaking has been hived off in to your
Company from Brigade Enterprises Limited. The hotel business undertaking comprising of the
operating hotels, under construction hotel and land bank relating to hotels will devolve up on the
Company including its assets and liabilities. The consideration payable by the Company is
Rs. 280,43,00,000/- which may be combination of Cash or Optionally Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares (OCRPS) or a combination of both,

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES:

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Brigade Enterprises Limited. There are no
subsidiaries / associates during the year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES.& DIVIDEND:

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves or declared any dividend for the year
2017-18.

FIXED DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, during the year and accordingly,
no amount is outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.

SHARE CAPITAL:

During the year the Authorized Share Capital of the Company was re- classified and increased
from the existing capital of Rs.1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore only) divided into 10,00,000
(Ten Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each to Rs.290,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two
Hundred and Ninety Crores only) comprising of:

1. Rs.9,00,00,000 (Nine Crores only) divided into 90,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

2. Rs.281,00,00,000 (Two Hundred and Eighty One Crores only) divided into 2,81,00,000
0.01% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) Rs.100/- each

Further, the company has approved to issue preferential allotment upto 2,81,00,000 0.01%
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) of Rs.100/- each at par on a
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preferential basis to M/s Brigade Enterprises Limited in one or more tranches on 14™ March,
2018.

DEBENTURES:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any Debentures. As on date, the
Company does not have any outstanding Debentures.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 3 directors of which all are Non-Executive
Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors is in due compliance of the Companies Act,
2013,

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the provisions of Section
152(6)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Nirupa Shankar (DIN: 02750342), Director of the
Company will retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers
herself for reappointment.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 4 times on the
following dates:

Dates on which Board Total Strength of the Board No of Directors
Meetings were Held Present

17" May, 2017 3 (Three) 3 (Three)

27™ July,2017 3 (Three) 3 (Three)

31%" October,2017 3 (Three) 3 (Three)

30™ January, 2018 3 (Three) 3 (Three)

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors of the Company have attended the Board Meetings as per the following
details:

Board meetings Attendance in the
Name of the Directors attended in the previous Annual
financial General Meeting
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Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road,

year2017-2018 held on 20th
September, 2017

Mr. M.R. Jaishankar 4 (Four) Yes
Ms. Nirupa Shankar 4 (Four) Yes
Mr. Vineet Verma 4 (Four) Yes

POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

The Directors of the Company are appointed by the members at annual general meetings in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

There is no remuneration paid Yo any directors and the directors are not entitled for any sitting
fees for attending the meetings of the Board.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Directors hereby confirm that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31°" March, 2018,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of
the Company for that period;

the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in-accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

there are proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
were in place and were adequate and operating effectively.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

The provisions relating to Key Managerial Personnel in accordance with the provisions of Section
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable for the financial year 2017-18.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Particulars pursuant to section 134 read with the Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable as the Company doesn't have any employees during the year under review.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The members of the Company at the First Annual General Meeting held on 20™ September,
2017 approved the appointment of M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 101049W/E300004), Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5
years till the conclusion of Sixth Annual General Meeting, which is subject to annual ratification
by the members of the Company in terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

The resolution relating to annual ratification of statutory auditors appointment is part of the
notice of the Second Annual General Meeting for member's approval. Members may ratify the
appointment of M/s. SR. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the financial years 2018-19.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Statutory Auditors’ Report for the
financial statements for the year ended 31°" March, 2018 which require any explanation from
the Board of Directors.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The related party transactions undertaken during the financial year 2017-18 as detailed in the
notes to accounts of the financial Statements which have been carried out at arm's length
basis and in the normal course of business.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

In terms of Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return of the Company for the
financial year 2017-18 in Form No. MGT-9 is appended as Annexure-1 to this Report.

L,

{

ADE
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MATERTIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

There were no material changes and commitments for the period under review, which
significantly affects the financial position of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS:

During the financial year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by the
regulators or courts or ftribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company's
operations in the future.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Company has adequate internal financial control systems in place with reference to the
financial statements.

During the year under review, these controls were evaluated and no significant weakness was
identified either in the design or operation of the controls.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board of Directors have been entrusted with the responsibility for establishing policies to
monitor and evaluate risk management systems of the Company.

The business risks identified are reviewed and a detailed action plan to mitigate identified risks
is drawn up and its implementation monitored. The key risks and mitigation actions will also be
placed before the Board of Directors of the Company on a periodic basis.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The provisions relating o Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company as
on 31°" March, 2018.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The company has not commenced the operations and therefore there is no consumption of
energy.
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B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: NIL

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

During the year under review, the Company has neither earned nor used any foreign exchange.
HUMAN RESOURCES:

There are no employees on the rolls of the Company at present.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation to all the stakeholders for their

continued support and patronage. We look forward to your support and co-operation as the
Company is enfering the next league of growth.

By Order of the Board
For Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Place: Bangalore Vineet A

Date: 2"May, 2018 Director
DIN: 06362115 DIN: 02750342




ANNEXURE-1
FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2018

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U74999KA2016PLC095986

Registration Date

24th August, 2016

Name of the Company

Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Bl Wl D] -~

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Company Limited by Shares

Indian Non - Government Company

5 |Address of the Registered office & contact details

6 |Whether listed company

No

29th & 30th Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr.Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-
Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560055

Tel: 91 80 41379200

Email: omprakash@brigadegroup.com

7 |Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

NA

|II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. No. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turnover of the company
1 Short term accomodation activities 551 57.60%
2 Restaurants and mobile food service activities 561 35.34%

ll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Name and Address of the company CIN/GLN Holding /Subsidiary/Associate % of Shares held Applicable Section
Brigade Enterprises Limited
29th & 30thFIr,World Trade Center,26/1,Brigade Gateway, Dr. ) 0
Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore-560 LB5T10KAT995PLCO19126 Holding Company 100% 2(46)
055

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change during the
Shareholders year
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF - - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00%
b) Central Govt - - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00%
c) State Govt(s) - - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00%
d) Bodies Corp. - 10,00,000 10,00,000 100.00% 10,00,000 10,00,000 100.00% 0.00%
e) Banks / Fl - - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00%
f) Any other - - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00%
Sub Total (A) (1) - 10,00,000 10,00,000 100.00% 10,00,000 10,00,000 100.00% 0.00%
(2) Foreign
a) NRI Individuals - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%
b) Other Individuals - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%
c) Bodies Corp. - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%
d) Any other - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Sub Total (A) (2) - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

TOTAL (A) - 10,00,000 10,00,000 100.00% - 10,00,000 10,00,000 100.00% 0.00%
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%
b) Banks / Fl - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%
c) Central Govt - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%
d) State Govt(s) - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%




f) Insurance Companies - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
g) Flls - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
h) Foreign Venture - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (B)(1):- - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp. - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
i) Indian 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
ii) Overseas 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders 0.00%
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh
ii) Individual 0.00% 0.00%
shareholders holding )
nominal share capital in
excess of Rs 1 lakh
c) Others (specify) -
Directors - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Non Resident Indians - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Overseas Corporate - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Bodies
Foreign Nationals - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Clearing Members - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Employees - 0.00%
HUF - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Trusts - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Foreign Bodies - DR - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (B)(2):- - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total Public (B) - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
C. Shares held by - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 10,00,000 10,00,000 100.00% 10,00,000 10,00,000 100.00% 0.00%
(ii) Shareholding of Promoter
SN Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change in
No. of Shares % of total % of Shares No. of Shares % of total Shares of | % of Shares | shareholding during the
Shares of the Pledged/ the company Pledged / year
company | encumbered to encumbered
total shares to total
shares
1 |Brigade Enterprises Ltd. 999700 99.97% 999700 99.97% 0.00%
2 |*Mr. M.R. Jaishankar 50 0.005% 50 0.005% 0.00%
3 |*Ms. Nirupa Shankar 50 0.005% 50 0.005% 0.00%
4 |*Mr. Vineet Verma 50 0.005% 50 0.005% 0.00%
5 |* Mr. Pradyumna Krishnakumar 50 0.005% 50 0.005% 0.00%
6 |*Mr. Suresh Yadwad 50 0.005% 50 0.005% 0.00%
7 |*Mr. Vishal Mirchandani 50 0.005% 50 0.005% 0.00%

* Beneficial interest is with Brigade Enterprises Limited
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please speci

fy, if there is no change)

SN Particulars Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
At the beginning of the year 01.04.2017 10,00,000 100.00% 10,00,000 100.00%
Changes during the year No Change
At the end of the year 31.03.2018 10,00,000 100.00% 10,00,000 100.00%

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders : NIL
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)




(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN | Shareholding of each Directors and Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
each Key Managerial Personnel
No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
1 [*Mr. M.R. JAISHANKAR

At the beginning of the year 01.04.2017 50 0.005% 50 0.005%
Changes during the year No Change - - - B
Atthe end of the year 31.03.2018 50 0.005% 50 0.005%

2 |*MS. NIRUPA SHANKAR
At the beginning of the year 01.04.2017 50 0.005% 50 0.005%
Changes during the year No Change - - - B
At the end of the year 31.03.2018 50 0.005% 50 0.005%

3 |* Mr. Vineet Verma
At the beginning of the year 01.04.2017 50 0.005% 50 0.005%
Changes during the year No Change - - B B
At the end of the year 31.03.2018 50 0.005% 50 0.005%

*The beneficial interest of the shares held by the Key Managerial Personnel is with Brigade Enterprises Limited , Holding Company

V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Amt. Rs./Lacs)

Particulars

Secured Loans excluding deposits

Unsecured Loans

Deposits

Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

22,794.30

- 22,794.30

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

22,794.30

- 22,794.30

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

* Addition

11,223.66

- 11,223.66

* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

34,017.96

- 34,017.96

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

34,017.96

- 34,017.96

|VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NIL

B. Remuneration to other Directors: NIL

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD: NIL

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Brief Description Details of Penalty / Authority [RD / NCLT/ COURT] Appeal made, if any (give Details)
Companies Act Punishment/ Compounding
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL
Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in india,
including the indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasenable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to cxpress an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on cur audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, We
conducted our audit of the ind AS financiai statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatemient of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or crror. In making thosc
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates madc by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

in our opinion and to the hest of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind AS
financial slatements give the informaiion required by the Act in the manner so reguired and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of alfairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2018, its loss including other comprehensive income. its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that daie.

5., Bathboi & Associates LLP, a Limied Liatlity Parinership with LLP ldentity No. AAB-2295
Rege. Office 22, Camac Street. Block ‘B, 3rd Floar, Kotkata-700 016




Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 26 to the Ind AS financial statements, relating to the Scheme of Arrangement
between the Company and Brigade Enterprises Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and the respective
shareholders and creditors in terms of the provisions of Sections 230 to 233 of the Act to transfer the hotel
business to the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Scheme™). The Scheme was approved by National
Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") in March 2018 with an appointed date of October 01, 2016 and consequently,
the Company has accounted for the Scheme using the pooling of interests method from the said appointed date.
However, the Scheme being a common control business combination, the aforesaid accounting from the
appointed date is not in accordance with Ind AS 103 specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 {“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure 1, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

= e
b

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20115, as
amended;

(e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report; and

g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

. The Company does not have any pending iitigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses and
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ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Y é'v'lf -
"
per Adarsh Ranka
Partner ‘ S _”‘Q_-‘I\
Membership Number: 209567, (""" 2 “;f” | J
s \ /,{:}J/

Y, & -~
Place: Bengaluru AN

Date: May 02, 2018 =



TR NACTDILINGOS

ANNEXURE 1| TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BRIGADE HOTEL VENTURES LIMITED

To the Members of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Report

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016

(“the Order™)

» (@
(b)
(©)

(i)

(iii) (a)

(b)

(©

(iv)

{v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment.

All property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonabie intervais during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

The Company has granted loans to one party covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the terms and conditions of the leans are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest, having regard to
management’s representation that the loans are given to such party considering the Company’s
economic interest and long-term trade relationship with such party.

In respect of the loans granted to parties covered in the repister maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the loans are repayable as per the coniractual terms. As per the contractual
terms, the loans have not fallen due for repayment. Accordingly, there has been no default on the part
of the party to whom the money has been lent,

There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for more than ninety
days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, provisions of Section 185
and 186 of the Act in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are interested and in
respect of loans and advances given, investments made and. guarantees, and securities given have been
complied with by the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified maintenance
of cost records under ciause 148(1) of the Act, for the services of the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees® state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service fax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax, cess and other
material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect

of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, good and services tax, cess and other material statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.




(ix)

x)

{xi)

(xii)

(xiiD)

(xiv)

{xv)

{xvi)

ol
ity

In our opinton and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a bank or financial institution. The
Company did not have any loans or borrowing from government or dues to debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans (representing loans with a repayment
period beyond 36 months) for the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not raised
any monies by way of initial public offer/ further public offer (including debt instruments).

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or oa the Company by its officers and emplioyees has been noticed
or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence reporting under clause
3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented uporn.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
The provisions of section 177 are not applicable 1o the company and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xili) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commenied upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully/partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Cotnpany and hence not commented upon. Also refer note 26 to the Ind
AS Financial Statements,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has nol entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in Section
192 of the Act.

According to the information and cxplanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 arc not applicable to the Company.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates §.1.P
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration Number; 101049W/E300004

per Adarsh Ranka

Partner

Membership Number: 209567

Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 02, 20 8
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BRIGADE HOTEL YENTURES LIMITED

To the Members of Brigade Hote! Ventures Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (“the
Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company [or the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essentjal
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efflicient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of [nternal
Financial Controts Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was estabiished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in ail material
respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over inancial
reporting, assessing ihe risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
eifectiveness of intemal contro! based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s

Judgement, inciuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financia! statemcnts. whether

due to fraud or civor,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audir
opinion on the interna! financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Iniernal Financial Controls Over Finaneial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliubility of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for externa!
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's interna! financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and proccdures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thai transactions arc recorded as niecessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that reeeipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

= Tiiitfaial statements,
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Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent {imitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, inciuding the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
traud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financia! reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2018, based on the internal control aver financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

A
per Adarsh Ranka ;
Partney ;"m \% \
Membership Number: 209567 | \Bengaluruj g |
NN AT
Place: Bengaluru [ T of

Date: May 02, 2018 S



Drigade FHotel Yentures Eimited
Balance Sheel as at March 31, 2018
{Albamounis in Indisn Rupees Lakhs, except as otberwise stated)

Notes 31-Mar-18 3i-Mar-i7
ASSETS
MNon-currcit asscis
Property, plant and equipment 3a 39,742.36 26,507.20
Intangible assets Ib 25.24 1955
Capital work in progress 4 12,227.39 13,148.50
Financial assets
Investments 5 11,618.59 10,324 59
i.oans 6 409 00 1,226.02
Deferred tax assets {net} 17 356.63 -
Cther non-current assets 7 83C.59 429 65
Snb totud ) 65,209.80 51,655.51
Current assets
Inventorics 8 340,02 340,23
Financial assets
Loan 6 69.65 453
Trade receivables 9 1,845.48 2.017.10
Cash and cash equivalents 0.1 1,855.15 910.64
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 102 125.00 12500
Other current financial assets 11 12.54 29.20
Other cuirrent assets 7 568.85 376,13
Suly total 4,816.69 3,843.63
Total assets 70,026.49 §5,499,14
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Eguity share capital 12 10600 100.06
Other equity 13 27,013.19 28,179.93
Total equity 27,113.19 23,279.93
LIABILITIES
Naon-Current Liabilitics
Financial liabilities
3orrowimgs 14 30,573.96 19,712.30
Uhber non current financial liabilities 15 3,208.71 2,360.59
Long term provisions 18a 90.60 76.35
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 - 48,08
Other non current liabilities 18 2372 2 a0l 61
Sub tutal 36,245.48 22,798.93
Current Liabiities
Financial Kabilitics
Trade payables 16 1.946.81 893.76
Other current financial liabilitics 15 3,531.40 3,253.62
Other current liabsdities 18 1,1138.66 198.00
Short term provisions 18a 70.95 74.84
Sub fotai 6,6607.82 2.420.28
Totad equity and liabilities 70,026.49 55,499.14
Summary ol significant aceounting policics 22

Ihie accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.
Ax pes our repord of even date

or and on behalf of the board of directors of
jeade Hote! Yentures Limited

For SR Bathiboi & Associates LLP

Churtered Accountants

IC At Firm registration number 101 049W/E300004
u.\_\r-"

W pi?

o

Vineet Verdia Nirupi Shar

Director Dire //

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 02, 2018

per Addursn Kanka
Pasther
Membership no ; 2003567

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 02, 2014




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Statement of prolit &and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2018
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Notes For the Year Ended 24-Aug-2016 to 31-

31-Mar-18 Mar-2017

income
Revenue from operations 19 16,6460.43 8.178.77
Other income 20 300.46 154.33
Total Income (i) . 16,946.89 8,333.10
Expenses
Cost of materials conswined 21 1,718.99 795.85
Employee benefits expense 22 3,625.1 1,735.91
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 2,943.48 1,536.36
I'inance costs 24 2,632.10 1,103.08
Other expenses 25 6,534.30 2.987.62
Totai expenses (ii) 17,474.58 8,158.82
(Laoss)/Pretit before exceptional items and tax (iii)=(i)-(ii) {527.49) 174,28
Exceptional fiems (ivy 26 €1,055.04) -
Profit before tax (v)=(iii)-(iv) {1,582.13) 174,28
Tax expense 17
Current tax - -
Deferred tax (eredit)/charge (404.63) 48.08
Total tax expense (vi) (404.63) 48.08
Profit for the year/period {@ii)m(v)-(vi) {1,178.10) 126,20
Other comprehensive income
items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on delined benefit plans 15.30 1525

Income tux relating to above (3.94) {3.93)
Other comprehensive income ('OCI) (viii) 11.36 11.32
Total comprehensive income for the year/period (ix)=(viiy+(viii) (1,166.74) 137.52
Earnings per cquity share 27
[nominal value of share Rs. 10 (March 31, 2016; : Rs.10]
Basic / Diluted (Rs) (117.81) 12.62

Summary of significant accounting policics 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of cven date

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associales LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants ipade Hotel Yentures Limited
[CAI Firm registration number: 101649W/E300004 |
M}L ( /v o
per Adarsh Ranka Vinest Vepfha Nirlipa Shankar
Pariner Direcior Dird
Membership no.: 269567
Place: Bengaluru - Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 02. 2018 Date: May 02, 2018



Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amounts in Indian Rupces Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

31-Mar-18 MH-Mar-17
Cash flows from operating activitics
Profit before tax . (1,582.73) 174.28
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,943.48 1,336.36
Interest expense 2,632.10 1,103.08
Interest income (185.97) {E11.76)
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,806.88 2,701.96
Movements in working capital :
Increase in trade payables 1,053.05 {2,879.46)
Increase in other liabiiities 2,722.63 233.16
Decrease in inventories 0.21 400.77
Increase in provisions 21.72 162.51
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivable 171.02 {1,229.10)
Deerease in loans 792,68 1,806.68
(Increase) in other assets (171.56) 204.95
Cash generated {rom operations 8,397.23 1,401.47
Direct taxes paid, net - -
Net cash flow from/ (used in} operating activities (A) 8.397.23 1,401.47
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (14,906.22) {4,207.90)
(including capital work in progress)
Purchase of non current investments (1,294.00) (1,114.59)
interest received 180.60 111.76
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) (16,019.62) {5,210,73)
Cash flows from Anancing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares - 100,00
Proceeds from borrowings 13,560.66 8,521.90
Repayment of Borrowings (2,337.00) {3.640.60)
fnterest paid (2,632.10) {1.103.08)
Net eash flow from financing activities () 8,591.56 3,878.22
Net increase in eagh and cash equivalents (A + B+ () 069,17 68 97
Cash and cash equivalenis at the beginning of the year/period 876.97 -
Add: Nel cash increase persuani to the scheme of arrangement (refer note 26) - 808.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 1,846.14 876.97
Components of cash and cash equivatents
Cush on hand 1,841.51 895,93
With banks: -
- 0N current accounts 13.64 14.71
Book Overdrafts (9.0 {33.67)
Total cash and cash cquivalents 1,846.14 876.97
Summary of signilicant accouniing policies 22
The accompanying notes are an infegral parl of the [nd AS (inancial statermnents.
As per our report of even date
For $.R. Batliboi & Associates L.LP For and on behali of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Axigade Hotel Ventures Limited
[CAI Firm registration number: 101043W/E300004 i
av
per Adarsh Ranka Vineet VQ/
Partner Director

Membership no.: 209567

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 02, 2018

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May (2. 2018




Brigade Hote! Ventures Limited
Stutement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amosnts in indian Rupees Lakhs, except as atherwise siated)

A. Equity share capital®:

Essticd, subseribed and fully paid-up share capital Na. ol Rs. in
shares lakhs
(in Lakhs)

Equity shares of Rs.JC cach:

As at Aprit 01, 2010 - -

Chanpges during the period 10.00 100.00

As af March 31, 2017 10.00 100.00

Changes during the year - -

As ai March 31, 2018 10.00 100,00
* Also refer note 12
B. Other cquity*

Capital Suspense Retained Total
Account carnings

As ut April 01, 2016 - - -
Profit for the period - 126.20 i26.20
Other comprehensive income** - 11.32 11,32
Total comprebensive income for the period - 137.52 £37.52
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares held in suspense for issue 28,042.41 - 28,042.41
(refer note 26)
As at March 31, 2017 28,042.41 137.52 28,179.93
Profit/(loss) for the ycar - (1,178.10) {1,}78.i
Otlicr comprehiensive income** - 11.36 11.36
Total comprehensive income for the year - (1,166.74) {1,166.74)
As st March 31, 2018 28,042.41 (1,029.22) 27,013.19

* Also refer note 13

*+ Ag required under Ind AS comphiant Scheduie I the Company has recognised re-measnrement gains/{losses) of defined benefdt plans (net of tax) of Rs, 11,36 Lakhs {March 31,

2017 Rs. 18,32 Iakhs] as part of vetained earnings.

Suwmmary of significant accounting policics

Tlie accompanying usies are an inseyral part of the Ind AS financial staiements,
Ag per our report of even date

tor §.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAL Finm regist

yw

_—r
. "h:x;\u‘

pa \lii’l[A11 Réuka

Partper

Meinbership ao.; 209567

Place: Bengatury
Date” May 02,2018
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For and on behpif of the board of dircctors of

igade Hotel Ventures Limited |
4

Vi, ma
Direcior

Place: Bengaluru
Datc: May 02, 2018



Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

i. Carporate information

Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 24® August 2016, The registered office of the Company
is tocated at 29" Floor & 30% floors, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-
Rajajinagar, Bangalore 560 055. The Company is carrying on the business of running and managing hatsls.

The Ind AS financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 02, 2018.
2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The {inancial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’}, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135, as amended.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generalty based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities. The effect of change in an accounting estimate is recognized
prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification,

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to he realised or infended to he sold or consimed in nomal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purposes of trading

- Expected to be realised within tweive months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a Jiability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when;

- It is expected to be seitled in normal operating cvele

- [t is held primarily for the purposes of trading

- It is due to be settied ‘within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period

All other Habilities are classified as non-curent.
The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
The Company has evaluated and considered its operating cycle as one year and accordingly has reclassified its assets and

liabilities into current and non-current.

Assets and liabilities, other than those discussed above, are classified as current to the extent they are expected to be realized/
are contractuaily repayable within 12 months from the Balance sheet date and as non-current, in other cases.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities,




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements lor the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

{c} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,
The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly aitributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced al intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives, Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recognition criteria arc satisficd. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the
future benefits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and
equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of
profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Borrowing costs directiy attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each baiance sheet date is classified as
capital advances under other non-current assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized,

Expenditure directly relating o construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is
capitalized to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect
expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is neither related to the construction
activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement of profit and loss,

Cosis of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.

(d) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on written down value basis using the following useful lives estimated by the management, which are
equal to those prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Asset Useful lives {in years)
Buildings ) 60
Plant and machinery 15
Electrical installation and equipment 10
Furniture and fixtures 8
Computer hardware 3
Office equipment 5
Maotor vehicles g

Based on the planned usage of certain project-specific assets and technical evaluation thereon, the management has estimated
the usefisl fives of such classes of assets as below, and are depreciated on straight line basis:

i Buildings - 25— 30 years

i, Furniture and fixtures - 5-8 years

iii. Office equipment - 5 years

iv. Plant and Machinery - 15 years

v, Electrical Instaflation and equipment - 10 years

vi. Computer hardware - 3 years
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The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized on a written down value basis over a periaod of three vears,
which is estimated by the management to be the useful life of the asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is derecognized,

H Impairment

A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS
109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes fifetime expected losses
for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equa!l to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit iosses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition,

B. Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annua! impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount, An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is deterimined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the tiine value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken
into account, if available. [f no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life,

(2) l.eases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception
of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease il [ullilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset
or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

Where the Company is lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease, A lease that transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is ¢lassified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the lcased property or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum !ease payments. Leasc payments are apportioncd between finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are recognized in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly atiributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitatized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs.
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A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company wili
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified
as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(h) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly atfributabie to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All
other borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit and loss.

(i} Inventories

Inventories comprising of food, beverages and other items are valued at lower of cost and net realizable vaiue. Cost of inventories
is determined on a weighted average basis. Inventories which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are
accounted as inventories.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probabie that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can
be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

The Company collects taxes such as goods and services tax, sales tax/value added tax, luxury tax, entertainment tax, service tax,
goods and services tax etc. on behalf of the Government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company.
Hence, they are excluded from the aforesaid revenue/ income.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Revenue from hospitality services

Revenue from hospitality operations comprise revenue from room and space rentals, restaurants, banquets and other allied
services, inciuding telecommunication, laundry. etc. Revenue is recognized as and when the services are rendered and is
disclosed net of allowances,

Interest income
Interest income, inciuding income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost, is recognized using the
effective interest rate method.

(k) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency,

Foreign currency transactions and balances
i} Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.
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ii) Conversion - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-
monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

iii) Exchange differences - The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency
monetary items as income or as expense in the period in which they arise.

)] Retirement and other empioyee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of state governed Employee Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance and Employee Pension
Fund Schemes are defmed contribution schemes (collectively the ‘Schemes’). The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the Schemes. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service. The contribution paid in excess of amount due is recognized as an asset and the contribution
due in excess of amount paid is recognized as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on project
unit credit method as at the batance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance
sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit ltability/ (asset) are recognized
in ather comprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans recognized
in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule I11,
the Company recognizes re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans {net of tax) to retained eamings,

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement
of profit and loss. The Company presents the accumulated leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does
not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

{m} Income taxes
[ncome tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

i.  Current income tax

Cusrent income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities based on the taxable income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

it. Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the
halance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes,
except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an assct or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and affects ncither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets arc recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax crcdits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
ditferences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxabie profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

(n} Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted usin g
a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed on ly by the
occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.
A contingent liability afso arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses it in the financial statements, unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources emhodying economic benefits is remote.

)] Segment repofting

The Company’s business activity falls within a single reportable segment, i.e., hospitality. Hence, there are no additional
disclosures to be provided under Ind-AS 108 ~ Segment information with respect to the single reportable segment, other than
those already provided in financial statements.

(p) Financial Insiruments

Financial assets and tiabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and Habilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or foss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

i.  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a
business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and setling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principai amount outstanding.

ii. Financial assets at-fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognized in statement of profit and loss.

tii,  Debt instruments at amortized cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a} The asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractuai cash flows, and
b) Contraciual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
{SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium cn acquisition and fees or costs




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

vi.

vii.

viii,

that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
Investment in subsidiaries and associate are carried at cost. Impainment recognized, if any, is reduced from the carrying
value.

De-recognition of financial asset
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or
it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109,

Financial Habilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification,
which is described below.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for ttading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Financial liabilitics at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest (‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or casts that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EiR method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments.

De-recognition of financial tiability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial Hability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amoun(s is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Fair value of financial instruments
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are
hased on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy:

All assets and Hiabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

» Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or iiabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
direcily or indirectly observable

» Level 3 —- Vatuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and iabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest fevel input that
is significant to the fair value mcasurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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{Q) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are caiculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an
equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of caiculating dituied earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders
and the weighted average number of shares ouistanding during the peried are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

(r} Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of
purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal
and usage.

23 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabifities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected
in future periods.

(a} Estimates and assusmptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
stgnificant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities within the next financial vear,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financia) statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future devetopments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
oceur.

Estimaiion of net reafizable value for inventory
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
ofits fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available
data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash fiows are derived from the
budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to
the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-in{iows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes.

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the futurc. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortatity
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its Jong-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

The parameter most subject to chanpe is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for pians operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available
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mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases are based on expected future inflation rates and expected salary increase thereon.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair vaiues of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF mode!. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk. Changes
in assuimptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Measurement of financial instrumenis ar amortized cost

Financial instrument are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest (*EIR’} method. The computation
of amortized cost is sensitive to the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash flows and the expected life
of the financial instrument. Changes in assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of financial instruments.

Evaluation of control, joint control or significant influence by the Company over its investee entities for disclosure:

Judgment is involved in determining whether the Company has control over an investee entity by assessing the Company’s
exposure/Tights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and its ability to affect those returns throngh its power
over the investee entity. The Company considers ali facts and circumstances when assessing whether it controls an investee
entity and reassess whether it controls an investee entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are chan ges to one or more
elements of control. In assessing whether the Company has joint control over an investee the Company assesses whether
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Further, in assessing whether
Company has significant influence over an investee, the Company assesses whether it has the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not in control or joint control of those policies.

Useful iife and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are determined based on evaluation
made by the management of the expected usage of the asset, the physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence
of the asset. Due to the judgments involved in such estimates the useful life and residual value are sensitive to the actual usage
it fsture period.

Provision for litigations and contingencies

Provision for litigations and contingencies is determined based on evaluation made by the management of the present obligation
arising from past events the settfement of which is expected to result in outflow of resources embodying economic benefits,
which involves judgments around estimates the ultimate outcome of such past events and measurement of the obligation amount.

(1 his space has been intentionally left blank)
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&3 Property, ghant and cquipment

Lanmd Buildings Flant & Ejectrical & OTice Camputers  Motor Yehicles  Ferniture & Tatal
Muchinery Electronicy Equiganent Fixtures
Cinst
At April 01, 2016 - - - - - - - - -
Additions 2127 2178 - RERT7 9.20 - 1887 F34.510
Additiouss Parsiant 10 the Scheme of Arrangemeont * 232560 2461622 338559 L0600 243484 229.31 9.1 229709 4161596
Disposals - . - - - - - - -
At Muarch 32, 217 332800 24,639,004 3,607.37 1,068, 2,516.71 238,51 5931 G596 437704
Additions - 9.552 67 [.782.92 LUgN 59 1.653.51 33797 +7.08 2,307.86 16,140
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
AlMareh 37, 2018 3J25.00 J4191.68 539029 234059 3322 876,28 106,19 1162582 559487
Degpeelation
At April DI, 26 -
Accumubited deprociation parsnam to the Scheme - S033.04 LA1575 11568 L740 98 152.81 2539 7.249.70 15.733.33
of Arrangementt
Charge for the period - 03T 23132 178.13 16421 2211 167 43369 L5249 92
Disposas - - - - . v . - .
A March 31,2057 - FSI6H3 1.435.07 20351 §905.10 174,92 WM THRBR.ID 17.263.27
Charge for die year - [MELE) 446 23708 213 )49 215 20 2929.04
Drisposits . - - . + - - - -
A Mlareh 34, 2058 - 667772 285,53 5I0.59 234737 235,41 3121 $I45.43 019281
Net ook value
As at Narek 33, 2017 2325.60 1910238 1.968.30 THIY 611.52 63.59 3125 163057 26,507.28
aron 2L, 2y 233860 ATELLE 333478 1EIL 13300 300 9,19 22130 29,7024

= Also refer note 26
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3 Intangibie Asseis
Elust Tutal

At April UL, 2086

Additions 1560
Additions Pursuant o the Scheme of Arrangoment*® 9925
Disposals. -

At March 31, 2017 L1486
Additions 19.95
Disposals -

At Mares: 31, 018 T VAL

Depreciativn
At April 1. 2016
Actuinfated depreciation pursuant o the Scheme #R.47
of Arratigement

Cligtege: for the persod 644
Disposids -
A March 3t 2037 9531
Charge for the voar 1424
Disposals "

At March 37, 2018

Ned ook vidue
As at March 31, 2H7

i Flaeui 53, Z03F

* Also refer noic 26

=

Capital Waork Mrogresy

AN @ April 81, 2016
-Aulditions (subscquent expenditgre}
Additions Pussunnl ta ihe Schome of Armangemont™

Capitatised during the period -

Ax it March 31, 2047 13.148.50
-Additions (subscquent eapauditare) 14711 28
Lapitabsed during he year 15,632.532
Axut Bareh 31,2008 12,221.3%

* Also refer note 26




Brigade Hotel Yentures Limited
Netes te Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 3§, 2018
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, excep! as otherwise stated}

5 Investments
3i-Mar-18 I1-Mar-17
Non-current
A. Invesiments earried at cost
Divestiment in equity instruments of subsidiaries
202 lakhs (March 31, 2017: 1.98 lakhs) Equity shares of Rs.}0/~ 8,374.59 8,174.59
cach fully paid up in SRP Prosperiia Hotel Ventures Limited
(PHYLY* )
Investmient in preference shares of subsidiarize
3244 lakhs {March 31, 2017 Nil) 0.01% A Series Compulsory 3,244.00 -
Converithle Preference shares of Rs. 100/- each fuily paid up in SRP
Prosperita Hotet Ventures Limited*
Ievestmuent in debentures of subsidiaries
Wil (March 31, 2017: 285 Lakhs) 12% Fully convertible debentures . 2,150.00
ol Rs, 100/- gach paid up in SRP Prosperita Hotel Yentures Limijted®*
Total Investments Carried at Cost 11,618.59 10,324,59
a) Agpregate amount ol quoted investments actively traded and market value thereof - -
b) Agprepate antomnt of other investmenis 11,618.59 10,324.59
* Refer note 26 and 30
5 Loans*
{Unsecured, considered good) Non-current Current
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 3-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Loans to employees - - 69.58 16.86
Loans {o reiated parties (refer note 30} 303,05 1,094,12 - -
Securily deposit 105,95 131.90 0.07 28.45
409.00 1,226.02 69.65 4531
* Reder note 26
7 Oiher asseis”
{Unsecured, considered good) Non- Current Current
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 3i-Mar-17
Advanice o supplicrs - 318.17 152.26
Capital advanees 822,01 421,96 - -
Balances with statwlory / government authoritics 8.58 - 11128 80.69
Prepaid expenses - - 139.40 143.20
Other assels - 7.69 - -
330.59 429.65 568,85 376.15
# Refer note 26
s Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisabie value)* 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Food & beverages 240.4G 23305
Others 99.62 107.18
140,02 340.23
* Refer nole 26
9 Trade receivables*
Cuirent
Unsecured. considered good 3l-Mar-18 3i-Mar-17
Trade receivables 790,70 339.58
Receivables from related partics (reler rote 303 1,054.78 1477.52
1,845.48 2,017.1%




Brigade Hotel Yentures Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in Indian Rupcees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

10.i  Cash and cash equivalents*
31-Mar-18 J1-Mar-t7
Balances with banks:
— On current accounis 1.841.51 §95.93
Cheques, drafts on hand - -
Cash on hand 13.64 14.71
1,855,15 910,64
For the purpose of the statement of cash Nows, cash aud cash equivalents comprise the following; 31-Mar-18 J-Mar-17
Balances with banks:
- On current accounis 1,841.51 895.93
Cheques, drafis on hand - .
Cash on hand 13.64 14.71
Cash and cash equivalents reported in balance gheet 1,855.15 910.64
I.ess - Book Overdralt (note 18) (9.01) {33.67}
Cush and cash equivalents reported in cash flow statement 1,846.14 876,97
* Refer note 26
E).2  Dank balances other than cosh and cash equivalents Current
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Balanees with banks:
~ Depesits with remaining maturity of less than 12 montlis 125.00 23.00
125.00 5.00
8] Other financial asseis
{Unsecured, consittered gond) Current
J1-Mar-i8 31-Mar-17
Interest acerued and net due on investment in deposits 5.36 -
Unbilled Revenue 7.18 2920
12,54 20,30
Break up of finuncial assets carried at amortised cost 3i-Mar-18 3i-Mar-17
lavestments {note 33 11,618.59 10,324.59
F.oans (1ote 6} 478,65 1,271.32
Trade receivabies {note 9) 1,845.48 2017.10
Cash and cash equivalents (note 101} 1,855.15 910.64
Balances ai bank other than cash and cash equivalents (note 10.2) 125.00 125.00
Other linaneiaf assets (note 11} 12.54 26.20
15,935.41 14,677.85

(This space hus been intentionally left blunk)




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Notes to Indf AS Fimancial Statements Tor the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)
12 Share capitai

Authorised share capital {N;).)

Equity shares of Rs.10 each:

Balance at the beginning of the year/period

Changes during the year/period
Balance at the end of the yem/period

Essued, subscribed and fully paid- up share capital

Equity shares of Rs, 10 cach:

Balance at the beginning of the year/period
Changes during the vear/period

Bakance at the end of the year/period

{n) Terms/ riphts attached to cquity shares

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
No. in Fakhs Rs, No. in lakhs Rs.
10.00 10006 10.00 100,00
2,890.00 28,900.00 - -
2,900.00 29,000.00 10,00 100.00
N-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
No. in lakhs Rs. Na. in lakhs Rs.
10,00 100.00 10.00 100,00
10.00 £00.00 10.00 100,00

‘The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. The Compary declares and
pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of direstor is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Avmual General meeting.

In event of liquidation of the Company, the lolders of equily shares would be emtitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounis. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company

1.000.000 {March 31, 2017 - 1,000,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 each

b} Shayes held by holding/ vitimate kolding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ nssocintes

{b) Details ¢f sharchelders nolding more than 5% shires in the company:

Equity shures of Rs. 10 cach:
R

rigads Entarmricas [ingitad
TIJACE SRISTPUISEs Linlies

13 Other equity

Share capital suspeasc account pending alletment (vefer note 26)

Retained earnings

Baiance at the beginning of the year/period
Proiitfloss) for the vear/period

Other comprehensive income for the year/period

Balunce at the end of the year/period
Total other cquity

14 Borsawings*®

Moa-current borrawings

Terai foan

Tenn Joan rom banks {secured} {refer note betaw)

) “?"Rhc[ cuirent financial liabilities” **
et

£

urrent horrowings

P esst current maturities - terstt Joans from banks disclosed under the b

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
10 14
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
MNos. % holding Nos. % holding
10 150% i6 6%
31-Mar-18 3-Mar-17
28.042.41 23.042.41
137.52 -
(1,178.1 126.20
1136 11.32
(£,020.22) 137.52
27,013.19 28,179.93

Effective fnterest Maturity March 31,2008 March 31,2017

8%-12% 2021-2025 34.017.90 22,794.30

34,0£7.96 12.794.30

ead U 1 2% 2019 3444.00 3,082.00
L 30,573.96 19,712.30




Brigade Hotel Yentures Limited
Notes to lad AS Firancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Ald ampunts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

14 Borrmwings* {Continued)

MNote I: Includes term loan from banks secured by way of assignment of hoiel operating cash flows Rs. 24,308 lakhs (March 31, 2017: Rs. 19,295 lakhs) and furiher secured
by coltateral secusity of undeslying land, building and imovalle property, plant and equipment. The loans carry interest in the range of 8-12% and are repayable within 96-120

instalments of upeo Rs. 500 lakhs.

Mote 2: fncludes term loan from banks and working capital loan from bank by way of morigage of hotel project properties and foture reczivubles Rs. 9,709.96 lakhs (March
31,2017: Rs. 3,499.30 lakhis). The Ioans carry interest rate in the range of 8-12% and are repayable within 12-144 instalments of upto Rs. 300 lakhs.

* Refer nnte 26
** Represents amount payable within the operating cyele

Other fnancial labilities

"

Payable towards purchase of lixed asseis

Current maturities of non current borrewings {note 14)
Employee benefis payabie

Interest free deposits from customers

16 Trade payalies

- Payahle to other parties

Non-turrent Current
31-Mar-18 3i-Mar-£7 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
2,966.75 2,209.67 - -
- - 3,444.00 3,082.00
- - 82,80 171.62
241,96 15092 4.60 -
3,208.71 2,360,59 3,531.40 3,253.61

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

194681 §93.76

1,946,81 893.76

Note * Based on the information available with the Company, there are no suppliers who are registered as micro, small or mediwn enterprises under “The Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act. 20067,

Break up of Anancind liabitities carried ot amortised cost

Trade pavables {note 15}
Onher financial Labilities {note 14)

17 Income tix
ity Deferecd Tax

Deferred tax tabilitics
Fixed assets - inpact of depreciation

Grross deferced tax lizbiities

DNeferred tax asseds

hnpact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but
alipwed for (ax purposes in subsequent vears
Gross deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax linbilitics/(asset)
b) Tax expense

Current tax

Current incoine tax charge
Deferred tax chargef{eredit)

Relating 1o origination and reversal of temporary dilferences
Tax expense reported in the Statement of profit or loss

Breferred tax related to items recopnised in OCI
. Income tax charged credit} refating (0 ileins recognised in OCI

Ea 5-‘\‘?:'11\1- reported in the oiher comprelensive income

3i-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

1,946.81 893.76
6,740.12 5614.21
8,686.93 6,507.97

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

81475 342,00
83675 342,00
1,193.38 293.92
1,103.38 293.92
(356.63) 48.08

31-Mar-18 J1-Mar-17

(404 63} 48.08

(d01.63) 48.08

(3.94)

(3.54)




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes te Inid AS Financial Statements for the year ended Marvch 31, 2018
{AH amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Note:
Reconcthation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate:

31-Mnr-18 31-Mar-17

Accounting (foss)/profit before income 1ax (1,582.73) 174.24
Tax on agcounging profit at statutory incowe tax rate [25.75%] - 44 .88
Tax effect of other items, net (404.63) 3.20
Tax expense reported in the Statement of profit or loss (404.63) 48,08
18 Other lixbilitics® Non-current Current
31-Mar-18 J1-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Advance from customers - - 34.61 164.39
Lease equalisation reserve 237224 601.61 - -
Statutory dues payable - - 1,055.04 .
Book overdrali - - 5.01 33.07
2,372.21 601.61 1,118.66 195,06

* Refer note 26

182 Provisions Non-current Current
31-Mar-18 I1-Mar-17 J-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Provision lor gramity* 90.60 14,35 1424 13.00
Provision for leave encashiment - - 36°H 6] 84
90.60 76.35 70.95 74.84

* Refer note 32

(This spoce fias been intentionally left blask)




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to 1nd AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, cxcept as otherwise stated)

19 Revenue from operations
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Revenue from operations
Room rental 8,928.13 4,211.61
Food & beverage sales 5,478.16 2,972.49
Other space rental 1,093.46 284,74
A 15,499.75 7,468.84
Other operating revenue
Sale of Scrap 22.79 299
Qthers 1,123 89 706.94
) B 1,146.68 709.93
(AH(B) 16,646.43 8,178.77
20 Other income
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Interest itcome from financial assets at amortized cost:
Bank deposils 185.97 111.76
Other non-operating income 114.49 42.57
300.46 154.33
21 Cost of materials consumed
3t-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
lnventory at the beginning of the year/period 34023 299.69
Add: Purchases during the year/period 1,718.78 836.39
2,059.01 1.136,08
Less: inventory at the end of the year/period 340.02 340.23
Cost of raw materials consumed 1,718.99 795,85




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lalkhs, except as otherwise stated)

22 Employee benelits expense
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Saiaries and wapes 3,089.42 1,395.97
Contribution to provident and other funds 207.58 86.15
Staff welfase expenses 310.85 24373
Training and recruitment expenses 16.86 10.06
3,625.71 1,735.91
23 Depreciation and amortization expense
3i-Mar-18 3i-Mar-17
[epreciation of tangibie assets 2,929.24 1,529.92
Amortization of intangible assets i4.24 6,44
1,943.48 1,536.36
24 Finanee costs
31-Mar-18 3t-Mar-17
Interest
on Borrowings 2,537.41 997.77
Others 94.69 105.31
Total 2,632.10 1,103.08
25 Other expenses
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Power and foel 1,394.53 577.62
Rent 470,58 38.66
Repairs to butldings 132.40 183.29
Repairs to machinery 183.49 93.94
Repairs others i71.45 75.45
insurarce 94,48 33.87
Rates and taxes 92.69 45.13
Payiment to the auditors® 10.00 0.05
Property taxes 183.12 173.61
Selling expenses 709.82 396.17
Apency commission 221 .87 103,91
Security charges 5.12 0.16
Pre-operalive cxpenses 31547 0.04
Training and recruitment cxpenses 29.44 11.81
Legal and professional charges 8066.83 451.08
Printing asd stationery 78.06 33.30
Travelling & conveyance 345.58 167.95
Telephone & other communication expenses 104.95 42.50
Miscellaneous expenses 1.144.92 559.08
6,554.30 2,987.62

(1} Payment to auditor (excluding goods and serviee tax):

As auditor:
Audii fee

[ees paid fo previous auditor

31-Map-18

31-Mar-17 *

13.00

10.09




Brigarde Hotel Yentutes Limited
Nates {0 Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amounts in Indinn Rupecs Lakhs, cxeepi as otherwise stated)

26 Scheme of Arrargemecent
The Scheme of Arrangement between the Campuany and its Holding Company and their respective sharehalders and creditors in terms of the provisions of Scctions 230
10 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 to transfer the hotels business undertakings to the Company (hereinafler referred ta as “the Scheme™) has been approved by National
Company Law Tribunat {'NCLT’) in March 2018 with an appointed date of October 01, 2016, The Scheme has been filed with the Regisirar of Companies, Karnataka
on April 0%, 2018

In accordance with the provisions of the aforesaid scheme -

a. The Scheme, being a common control business combination, has been accounted for using the pooling of interests method fram the appointed date specified under the
Scheme. As per ind AS {03 - Business Combinations, common contro! business combination shall be accounted for using the pooling of interests method and the
financial information in the financial statements in respeet of prior periods should be restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the
preceding period in the financial staiements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. Therefore, the aforcsaid accounting from the appointed date is not in
accordance with Ind AS ¥03. However, the aforesaid accounting from the appointed date does net have an impact on the prolit or loss for the current year.

b. The purchase consideration under the Scherne is being paid by way of issuance of Optionally Convertible Redeemabic Preference Shares {'OCRPS’) of Rs.28,042.41
lakhs. As the OCRPS have been atloited subsequent to March 31, 2018, the same has been disclosed as *Share capital suspense account pending allotment” under Other
equity.

¢ The assets and Habilities as at October 01, 2016 (the appointed date) transferred to the Company at book value are summarized below.

Particulars Amonnt
Non-Current Assefs
Property, plamt and equipment, Investment
Property and Itangible Assels

37,893 .00

Capital work in progress 7,323.00
Investinens 9.210.00
Loans 1,673 .00
Current Assets
inventories 741.00
"Trade recervables 788,00
Cash and cash equivalents £08.00
B:m_k balances other than cash and cash 135 00
equivalents
Loang 1,405.00
Other current assets 618.00
Total Assets {A} 50,584.00
Non-Current Libilities
Borrawings 17.913.00
Other non-current liabiiities 23500
Current Linbilities
Trade payables 3,773.59
Total Linbilities (B) 22,541.59
Net Assets tragsferred (C=(A-B)Y 28.042.41
Purchase Consideraiion received by way of:
0. OCRPS of Kg 100/~ each at par 28,042 .41
Total Purchase Consideration 28,042 .41

The accounting of the Scheme in the current quarter from the appointed date of October 01, 2016 has resulted in restatement fincreasef (decrease)) af the previously
published Ind AS firancial information of the Company by the figures summarized below:

Previous
Particulars period ended
R R VIS PAVE B )
Revenue 833299
Total Expense 8,157 57
Met profit tor the period 17542

Exceptional ltem
The company has provided Rs 1,055.04 lakhs towards estimated stamp duty expense on Demerger, which has been provided for and disclosed as an exceptional item.




Brigade Hotel Yentures Limifed
Noies to Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amonnts in Intian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

27 LEarnings per share

Basic enmings per share (EPS) amounts are caleulated by dividing the prolit for the year/pericd attributable to cquity hoiders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares uutstanding during the year/period.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit atlributable 10 equity holders by the weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the
year/period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion ol all the dilutive potential equity sharas into equity shares.

The follewing reflects the incume and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

28 Commitments and contiogencies
a. Leases
Operating lease: Company as lessee
The Company has taken lend and resideotial space under canceliable and non-cancellable operating leases. These leases have life of upto seven years with renewal
option and include a clause to enable upward revision of the lease rental on periodical basis. There are no restrictions placed upon the Company by entering into these
{eases.
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Rs. Rs.
lease rentals payinents recognised as an expenses in the statement of Profit aod ioss 470.58 38.66
[uture minimum rentals payabie under non-cancellable operating leases are, as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs, Rs.
Within onc vear 511.52 70.68
After one ycar but not inore than five years 2,250.48 333.53
Above (ive years 19,955.00 2,376.88
22,717.00 1,781.09
b. Commitmenis
(1} Al March 31, 2018, the estimated amount of contract {net of capitat advance) remaining to be execuied on capital account not provided for was Rs.4,228 takhs (11
March 2017: Rs. 7,350 lakhs)
e, Contingent liab
Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Rs, Rs,
Letter of Credits 795,00 763.00
795,00 763.00
22 Unhedged (oveign curiency esposure March 31,2018 iiareh 31, 2017

Current Year

Previous Period

Profiv(Lass) after tax (1,178.10) 126.20
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (No.) 10 10
Basic/ Diteted EPS (117.81) 12.62

rade Fayable

Rs.

Rs.

282.77

21252




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

30 etated party disclosure®

1. Names of related parties and nature of relationship with the Company

1 |Names of related parricg Nature of Relationship  [Abbreviations
1|Brigade Enterprises Limited Holding Company "BEL"
2|SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited {formerly Prosperita Hotel Venjures Limited) Subsidiary Company “PHVL"
3|Brigade Hospitality Services Limited Fellow Subsidiary company ["BHSL"

IT  Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

Directors Mr. M.R. Jaishankar
Ms, Nirupa Shankar
Mr. Vineet Verma

111, Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial yeas/period:

Particulars Relationship 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Sale of food & beverages Holdiag Company 136.31 22.00
Purchase of capital assets {BEL) B 39,491.49
Trade receivables 1,054 78 1,477.52
Non-current loans i Subsidiary - PHVL 303.05 1,004.12
Interest Income on 12% FCDS - 108.00
Purcha_se of_focd Fellow Subsidiary- 101.22 -
Sale of services BHSL 4.26 -
Amount Payable 62,16 -

IV. Reimbursement of expenses paid/ received
Year ended Reimbur-sement  Reimbur-sement
paid received

Related parties where enntrol exists

BEL 31-Mar-18 52 27
31-Mar-17 - -
BHSL 3i-Mar-18 l -
3i-Mar-17 - -

Other Eraesietions:

I Conversion of shares of PHVL
The Company has purchased 32.44 fakhs 0.01% A Scrics Compulsory Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid up in SRP Prosperita [otel
Ventures Limited by conversion of 21.5 Lakhs 12% Fully convertible debentures of Rs. 100/- cach paid up in SRF Prosperita Hote! Ventures Limited.

2 The company has Invested in 3,610 cquity shares of Rs. 10 cach at premium of Rs 3,416 per share in SRP Prosperiia [iotel Ventures Limited.

* Refer note 26
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Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements lor the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

3

Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities are trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly
from its operations.

‘The Company is exposed 1o markel risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversecs the management of these risks and

ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s pelicies and risk ohjectives.

i, Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a {inancial instrument will fluctuate because ol changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commaodity.

interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s finuncial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
markel interest rates. The Company is not exposed to this risk of changes in market interest rate since the Company does not have any borrowings.
Therclore the changes in the interest rates will not have any impact on future cash fiows.

The Company is affected by the price volatility ol certain commodities. The Company’s management has developed and enacted a risk management
strategy regarding commodity price risk and its mitigation. The Company is subject to the price risk variables, which are expected to vary in line
with the prevailing market condstions,

il. Credit risk

Credit sisk is the risk of loss that may arisc on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations. The Company’s
exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade receivables/ unbitled revenue and other financial assets.

Other financial assets like scourity deposits and bank deposits are mostly with employees, government bodies and banks and hence, the Company
does not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial assets,

With respect to trade receivables/ unbilled revenue, the Company has constituted teamns {o review trade receivables on periodie basis and to take

necessary mitigations, wherever required. The Company creates allowance for all unsecured trade receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss.
At the balance sheet date, there was no significant concentration of credit risk and exposure thereon.

iii. Liquidity Risk
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexihility through the use of bank borrowings.

The suminary of the maturily profile of the Company’s financial iiabilities is as below:

Maturity period 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Financial liabilities - Current
Borrowings (includes current maturities of non current borrowings) Within | year 3,444.00 3,082.00
Trade payables Within | year 1.946.81 893.76
Other finaneial liabilities (excluding current maturities of non current Within | year 87.40 171.62
borrowings)
Financial liabilitics - Non Current

Borrowings Between 1-5 years 30,573.96 19,712.30

Other fimancial Habilities Between 1-5 years 3,208.71 2,360.59
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32 Defimedt beafit plan - Gratuity

The Company eperutes tefined goieity plan for its coployees. Under e plan, every enplaves wha has comploted i [easl Tive years of sypace peie a pratinly o departie o 15 doys of st drai safory for ach completed sew of servce
The schemy is Risdind wilhsn insumnee company i the far of qeditfving insuronce pelicy.

£ b furllesszng tabhes sumnisrise the coumxenents of net il expenses reeognised in the statement of profit o foss wd the fued shius and i necogansed i the hadanoe sl

Changes i th defioed bonefit oblisnhon and iz vakue of plan asseis - Yeae ended March 31 3018
Expenye charged lo profit ar loss Renteasurement (painsylosses i ather comprehensive income
Retum on pl?" Actuarial Actuasial
- By . Sub-total Benetily |00t (exeluding - chanpes o arising 5 Sutwtazal | Contributions [ March 31,
Gruity April 01, 2087 . Net intorest ) ameunts arising from Expericige N N
Serviee cost included in puid From chunges incinded in by employer 2018
eXpEn included changes In N N wdjustments
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Fair values

The fair vaiue of the financial assets and liabifities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
befween willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

The management assessed that the carrying values of cash and cash cquivaients, trade receivables, investments, loans, trade payables, borrowings and
other inancial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values largely due to the short-term maturities and are repriced [requently.

Capital mansggement

The Company’s objectives of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the return Lo sharehiolders, issue/ buyback shares or sell assets 10 reduce debt. The Company manages its capital structure and
makes adjusiments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity pius net debt as below.
- Equity inctudes equity share capital and all other equity components atiributable to the equity holders
- Net Debt includes borrowings (long-term and shori-term), trade payables and othcr financial labilities, less cash and cash equivalents

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Borrowings {non current) 30,573.96 18,712.30
Trade payables 1,946.81 893.76
Other financial liabilities {current and non-current) 6,740.12 5,614.21
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (1,980.15) {1,035.64)
Net Debt (A) 37,280.74 25,184.63
Equity share capitai 100.00 100.00
Other cquity 27.013.19 28.179.93
Equity (B) 27,113.19 28,279.93
Equity plus net debt (C=A + B) 64,393.93 53,464.56
Gearing ratin (D=A/C) 57.89% 47.11%

in arder 10 achicve the ohjective of maximize sharcholders vaiue, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims ¢ ensure that it meels
financial covenanls attached to the interest-bearing borrowings that define capital structure requircments. Aay significant breach in meeting the
linancial covenants would allow the bank to call bofrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of above-mentioned intcrest-
bearing borrowing,

Mo changes were made in the ohjectives, policies or processes {or managing capital during the current and previous years.

Segment Reporting

The Company’s business activity (alls within a single reportable segment, i.e., Hospitality. Hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided
under fnd-AS (08 — Segment mlormation with respect 1o the single reportable segment, other than those already provided in financial statements.
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Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards issved, but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards when they become effective.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™} has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 with effect from Aprif 1, 2018,
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 inciudes Ind AS 115 Revenue from Customers, Appendix I} to Ind AS 115 Service Concession
Arrangements and Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration. Ind AS 1| Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18 Revenue
will he omitted from April §, 2018

A) [nd AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers
On March 28, 2018, the Ministry of Corporate AlTairs (MCA) has notified Indian Accounting Standard {ind AS) 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. ind AS
115 introduces a five-step model to revenue recopnition:

Step 1 ldentify the contract{s} with a customer

Step 2, ldentify the performance oblipations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Recognise revenue when (or as} the cntity satisties a performance obligation

Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service {i.e., an asset} to a
customer (i.e., when (or as) the customer obtains contro! of that asset) at an amuunt that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entilled in exchange
fur transferring poods or services 10 u customer. The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognitien requirements under Ind AS. Either a ful!
retrospective application or a medified retrospective appiication is required for accounting periods comimencing on or after April 01, 2018.

‘The Company will adupt Ind AS 115 effective from April 01, 2018. As at the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements, the Company is in the process of
evaiuating the requireinents of the said standard end the itnpact on its financial stslements in the period of initial application.

b} Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate 10 use on initia! recognition of the related asset, expense or income {or pari of it) on the derecognition
of'a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration, I{ there are molliple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the
transaction date for each payviment or receipt of advance consideration

Entitics may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an cntity may apply these requirements prospectively to afl assets, expenses
and incone in its scope that are injtially recognised on or after:

{11 The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applics the Appendix, or
{i() The beginning of a prict reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the reporting period in which the cntity first applies the
Appendix,

The Appendia & effective for anuual perods beginning vo oy afier 1 Aprii 2018,
The Company's aperation primarily relate to operations in indfa, The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the new siandard in future will
have significant impaet on the financial statcment

¢) Amendments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

I'he amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricls the sources of taxable protits against which it may make deductions an the reversal of
that deductibie temporary difference. Furthennore. the amnendinents provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the
cireumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

Entities are required to apply the amendments rettospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest
comparative period may be recognised in opening retained eamings (ot in another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change between opening
retained earnings and other components nf equity. Fntities applying this relief must disclose that fact.

These amendments are cfective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2618, As at the date of issuance of the Company’s financial stazements, the Company s
n the process of evaluating the requircments of the said standard and the impact on its financiat statements in the period of initial application.

d} Transfers of Investment Property — Amcendments to ind AS 40

The amendmeots clarify when an entity should transfer property, including properly under construction or development into, or out of investment properly. The
ameadments state that a change in use oceurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in
use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

Enuties shoutd apply the amendmenis prospectively to changes in use that aceur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applics
the amendments. An entity should reassess the classification of property held at that date and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist at that
daie. Retrospeetive application in accordance with Ind AS 8 is only permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight.

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after T April 2018, As af the date of issuance of the Company's {inancial statements, the Company is
i the process of evaluating the requirements of the said standard and the impact on its financial statements in the period of initial application - .
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37 The figures of previous period were audited by a firm of Chartered Accountants other than S, R. Batliboi & Associates LLP. Also refer note 26.

As per our report of even daie
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